
 

 
 

Agendas, Reports and Minutes will be provided upon request in the following formats: 
 
Large Clear Print: Braille: Audio: Native Language 

 

 West Lindsey District Council  

Guildhall Gainsborough 
Lincolnshire DN21 2NA 

Tel: 01427 676676 Fax: 01427 675170 
 

AGENDA       

 
 

This meeting will be webcast live and the video archive published on our 
website 

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Tuesday, 16th January, 2024 at 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber - The Guildhall 
 
 
Members: Councillor Paul Howitt-Cowan (Chairman) 

Councillor Jacob Flear (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Jeanette McGhee (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Trevor Bridgwood 
Councillor Liz Clews 
Councillor Paul Key 
Councillor Lynda Mullally 
Councillor Maureen Palmer 
Councillor Roger Pilgrim 
Councillor Mrs Diana Rodgers 
Councillor Moira Westley 

 
 

1.  Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.  Minutes of the previous meeting 
To confirm and sign as an accurate record, the Minutes of the 
Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 7 
November 2023. 
 

(TO FOLLOW) 

3.  Members' Declarations of Interest 
Members may make any declarations of interest at this point and 
may also make them at any point during the meeting. 
 

 

4.  Matters Arising Schedule 
Matters arising schedule setting out current position of previously 
agreed actions as at 8 January 2024.  
 

 

Public Document Pack



5.  Presentation Item 
Presentation by Chris Duncan, Martin Miles and Peter Smith 
providing further details from Everyone Active following their 
presentation to the Committee in November 2023. To include 
updates on: works undertaken at the Gainsborough Leisure Centre, 
outreach programmes across the district and ongoing improvement 
plans. 
 

(VERBAL 
REPORT) 

6.  Public Reports   

i)  Scrutiny of Progress and Delivery Reporting Through 
the Policy Committees 
 

(PAGES 3 - 49) 

7.  General Work Items   

i)  Forward Plan 
 

(PAGES 50 - 56) 

ii)  Committee Workplan 
 

(PAGE 57) 

 
 

Ian Knowles 
Head of Paid Service 

The Guildhall 
Gainsborough 

 
Monday, 8 January 2024 

 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Tuesday, 16 January 2024  

 

     
Subject: Scrutiny of Progress and Delivery Quarter 2 2023/2024  

 

 
 
Report by: 
 

 
 
Director, Change Management, ICT and 
Regulatory Services 

 
Contact Officer: 
 

 
Claire Bailey  
Change, Projects and Performance Officer  
 
Claire.bailey@west-lindsey.gov.uk  
 

 
Purpose / Summary: 
 

 
To consider the responses arising from the 
Council’s policy committees with regards to 
quarter two Progress and Delivery reporting.   
 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That the Committee examine the responses given to the report by the Prosperous 
Communities and the Corporate Policy and Resources Committees and assure 
themselves that the appropriate level of challenge is being made by those 
committees to the information contained in the report. 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6a

mailto:Claire.bailey@west-lindsey.gov.uk


 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are required to 

scrutinise the challenge of the two policy committees to the content of 
the council’s Progress and Delivery reports.  

 
1.2  To assist this scrutiny, a summary of the relevant minutes are provided 

to the Committee, as well as the full Progress and Delivery report.  
 
1.3  Minutes of the Prosperous Communities Committee, where the report 

was presented on 26 October 2023, are summarised at section two of 
this report, with the full minute attached at Appendix 1. 

 
1.4 Minutes of the Corporate Policy and Resources Committee, where the 

report was presented on 9 November 2023, are summarised at section 
three of this report, with the full minute attached at Appendix 2.   

 
1.5 The full Progress and Delivery report for quarter two of financial year 

2023/2024 is attached at Appendix 3, for information only.  
 
1.6 Members are asked to examine the responses given to the report by 

these two policy committees and assure themselves that the appropriate 
level of challenge is being made to the information contained in the 
report. 

 
 
2 Summary of Minutes – Prosperous Communities Committee 26 

October 2023  
 
2.1 In considering the quarter two Progress and Delivery report, the following 

aspects were discussed: 
 

 Markets – number of stalls / number of traders 

 Community Funding – additional monies available 

 Disabled Facilities Grants – necessary for the county wide 
funding structure to be changed in order for WLDC to improve 
performance. Additional data requested regarding time frames for 
smaller adaptations 

 Secondary spend at Trinity Arts Centre – suggested work to 
improve levels 

 Waste services – praise for street cleansing, thanks to staff for 
response to fly tipping, request for partnership working regarding 
access to waste sites, increased use of camera for fly tipping 
hotspots 

 Reduced collection rates on Council Tax – changes in payment 
terms explained and assurance given regarding close monitoring 

 Leisure facilities – requested that increase in attendance figures 
be monitored.  

 
 

Page 4



 

3 Summary of Minutes – Corporate Policy and Resources Committee 
9 November 2023 

 
3.1 In considering the quarter two Progress and Delivery report, the following 

aspects were discussed: 
  

 Continued improvement in the reporting structure – enquiry 
regarding options for a ‘dashboard’ type system 

 Target and measure setting 

 Corporate Health reporting through the Governance and Audit 
Committee 

 
 
4 Conclusion 
 
4.1 The Committee are asked to examine the responses given to the report 

by the Prosperous Communities and the Corporate Policy and 
Resources Committees and assure themselves that the appropriate 
level of challenge is being made by those committees to the information 
contained in the report. 

Page 5



Appendix 1 
Excerpt of Minutes Prosperous Communities Committee 26 October 2023 
 
 
46 PROGRESS AND DELIVERY QUARTER TWO (2023/24) 

 
Consideration was given to the Progress and Delivery report for quarter two 2023/24 
(July-September). 
 
The Change, Projects and Performance Officer introduced the report and explained 
that it set out performance across the period July to September 2023. It was advised 
that there had been some slight changes to the overall summary with a view to 
making the information clearer and more accessible. The content of the report was 
detailed and it was noted that the Council budget forecast outturn it needed to be 
updated to minus 1.83%.  
 
The performance improvement plan was also outlined for the Committee. 
Information regarding markets in the district was highlighted and clarification was 
given that the performance in terms of average weekly number of stalls took into 
account farmers' markets and events held throughout the quarter, and where it 
referenced stalls, one trader could have more than one stall.  
 
A number of indicators and their respective ratings against the agreed targets were 
highlighted particularly in respect of crematoriums. The performance of individual 
portfolios including Change Management, ICT and regulatory services, Finance, 
Business and Property Services, Homes and Communities, Operational and 
Commercial Services and Planning and Regeneration were detailed. 
 
A Councillor welcomed the report and thanked Officers for the clarity of the 
information and it was suggested that, as the Council was relatively small, 
organisation figures could be impacted by minor fluctuations. The information 
relating to community funding and use of the new levelling up fund was highlighted, 
and it was considered beneficial that additional monies were available to reduce 
pressure on council funding.  
 
The information regarding Disabled Facilities Grants was emphasised and it was 
noted that West Lindsey currently received the second highest number of referrals 
but was the second lowest funded authority. It was suggested that this needed to be 
resolved urgently. 
 
A Member suggested that more detailed information was needed regarding 
secondary spend at Trinity Arts which was below target and some work to increase 
performance should be explored further. 
 
The good street cleansing performance was noted and the Committee expressed 
their thanks to the staff involved for providing such a good service. It was suggested 
that many fly tipping incidents were due to traders disposing of waste and it was 
asked if work could be undertaken with partners to make waste sites more 
accessible. 
 

Page 6



In response the Director of Operational & Commercial Services acknowledged the 
concern and agreed that the situation where residents could not necessarily access 
the nearest facility as it was in a different district needed to be addressed. In respect 
of fly tipping it was outlined that it was often difficult to catch offenders but investment 
in cameras had helped and a reporting portal was now available. The information 
allowed the Council to identify hotspots and target resources as needed. 
 
A Councillor returned to the issue of Disabled Facilities Grants and expressed 
disappointment that the target of 120 days was not being met and was currently on 
average 157 days. It was noted however that this work was split between the district 
and county councils which led to delays, and it was suggested that comparative data 
with other districts would be useful. It was also noted that minor adaptations were 
undertaken in a shorter time frame. Members requested for a breakdown to be 
provided as to time taken for minor adaptions in comparison with larger scale works.  
 
In response it was suggested that the complexity of the transfer between 
occupational therapy and whichever housing team, wherever that was based, was 
what ultimately held things up. There had been discussion as to whether this now 
sat in the performance improvement plan because until the challenge around 
funding for grants was resolved, performance was not going to improve. Work was 
continuing through the housing, health and care delivery group looking for a 
conversation to change how funding was allocated across Lincolnshire. It was 
suggested that more detailed information could be provided as many smaller 
adaptations were being completed relatively quickly. 
 
A Member raised concern regarding reduced collection rates for Council Tax and 
Non-domestic Rates and the potential impact this could have in income for the 
Council. The concern was acknowledged, and it was advised there were some 
changes in payment terms for some businesses due to relief funds and this skewed 
the figures. It was confirmed that figures would be closely monitored. 
 
The performance relating to leisure facilities was raised and whilst the increase in 
attendance was welcomed it was not particularly large in Market Rasen. It was asked 
if this could be monitored. Officers undertook to take the issue away and raise it with 
the contractor. 
 
The recommendations in the report were proposed and duly seconded, and, on 
being put to the vote it was unanimously  
 

RESOLVED that the Committee had assessed the performance of the 
Council’s services through agreed performance measures and had indicated 
areas where improvements should be made, having had regard to the 
remedial measures set out in the report. 

 
 

 

Page 7



Appendix 2 
Excerpt of Minutes Corporate Policy & Resources Committee 9 November 2023 
 
 
59 PROGRESS AND DELIVERY QUARTER TWO (2023/24) 

 
Consideration was given to the Progress and Delivery report for quarter two 2023/24 
(July-September). 
 
The Change, Projects and Performance Officer introduced the report and explained 
that it set out performance across the period July to September 2023. It was advised 
that there had been some slight changes to the overall summary with a view to 
making the information clearer and more accessible. The content of the report was 
detailed, and it was noted that the Council budget forecast outturn position needed 
to be updated to minus 1.83%.  
 
The performance improvement plan was also outlined for the Committee. 
Information regarding markets in the district was highlighted and clarification was 
given that the performance in terms of average weekly number of stalls took into 
account farmers' markets and events held throughout the quarter, and where it 
referenced stalls, one trader could have more than one stall.  
 
A number of indicators and their respective ratings against the agreed targets were 
highlighted particularly in respect of crematoriums. The performance of individual 
portfolios including Change Management, ICT and regulatory services, Finance, 
Business and Property Services, Homes and Communities, Operational and 
Commercial Services and Planning and Regeneration were detailed. 
 
Debate ensued, Members acknowledged the significant work that had been 
undertaken in recent years to improve the quality of the performance reports.  Given 
that a number of measures were to be reviewed shortly, a Member sought indication 
as to whether the ultimate goal was to have performance information accessible, 
almost real time information, in a dashboard format available to Members.  
 
In responding, Officers welcomed the acknowledgement of the improvements which 
had been made to-date.  The primary objective over the ensuing year was to ensure 
the new processes and systems were working effectively and robustly.  Further 
developments to reporting would be considered and whilst daily reporting may be a 
way, off monthly dashboards accessible to Members were something which could 
be considered going forward. 
 
Members indicated such a development would be of great assistance to them in the 
future. Others expressed caution that viewing measures on a daily basis could 
indicate pressures that weren't truly there. 
 
Members noted the pleasing position the report indicated but in doing so sought 
further information as to how targets were set and whether these were stretching 
enough. In response, Officers advised that measures were set in a variety of ways, 
some in line with Government targets, such as the planning measures, a number in 
line with service level agreements and others were set locally.  All targets and 

Page 8



measures were scrutinised with the next suite of measures looking to be renewed 
and approved in February 2024 with the involvement of Members.  
 
Referencing the corporate health measures and the information contained within the 
report about surveys, Members suggested this information offered them little insight, 
given there was no departmental split, complaint themes or information that could 
be used to inform future policy setting.  
 
In responding, Officers advised that a more detailed report regarding complaints, 
outcomes and the information to which Members had referred was routinely reported 
to the Governance and Audit committee in detail. The intention of the P&D report 
was to give the high-level information regarding the service and its measures.  
Officers undertook to include a link and reference to those more detailed reports in 
future performance and delivery reports going forward.  
 

RESOLVED that the Committee had assessed the performance of the 
Council’s services through agreed performance measures and had indicated 
areas where improvements should be made, having had regard to the 
remedial measures set out in the report. 

 
 

 

Page 9



 

 

Progress and Delivery 

Report 
Quarter Two 2023/24 
July - September 
 

 

  

Page 10



 
Executive Summary 

 
The quarter two Progress and Delivery report covers the period from July to September 2023. The performance 
information presented in this report is grouped by portfolio and based on the measures and targets approved by Corporate 
Policy and Resources Committee in February 2023. 

Each section of the report begins with an overall summary of portfolio performance, including measures which have been 
above or below target for at least two consecutive quarters. This is followed by a performance summary for each service 
within that portfolio. Performance is reported by exception (above or below target) and a narrative for each service is 
included to provide additional context. 

Following on from the roll out in quarter two 2022/23, the Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) features on page seven 
and eight of this report, this is a key part of the report where we highlight those measures which report below target for 
two of more consecutive periods.  

Together 24 

Within the Progress and Delivery report there are a number or references to the Councils Together 24 (T24) programme, 
T24 is the Councils transformational project which was launched in August 2020. Delivery of the programme is 
undertaken by Change Management, System Development working in collaboration with the service areas to undertake 
detailed holistic service and process reviews making recommendation for redesign and improvement. With the aim to 
deliver better outcomes for customers and officers, through the delivery of more efficient services.  

Looking ahead… 

Throughout September 2023 the Change Team met with all Team Managers and Directors to review the measures and 
targets and make recommendations for 2024/25. A paper was presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee in October 
who approved the formation of a member working group. This information will be discussed as part of a Progress and 
Delivery working group in November, which will inform the final report for approval at Corporate Policy and resources 
Committee in February 2024. 

For further information or to discuss the report further please contact either: 

 

Darren Mellors  

Change, Programme and Performance Manager 

darren.mellors@west-lindsey.gov.uk 

Claire Bailey 

Change, Projects, and Performance Officer 

clare.bailey@west-lindsey.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



 

This report includes Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) set for 2023/24 where progress is assessed against agreed 
targets. Progress against targets is assessed by RAG (Red/Amber/Green) ratings. Progress is also assessed in terms 
of direction of travel (DoT) using arrows. 

DoT arrows are used to indicate the direction of change for KPIs over time. This provides a visual display to show 

whether performance has improved/declined/remained the same when compared to the corresponding quarter. 

DoT   

↑ Performance improving 

↓ Fall in Performance 

→ No change 

RAG  

 Measure exceeding approved target 

 Measures within approved tolerances 

 Measure below target  

 

 

  

Key to KPI Ratings Used 

Page 12



 
Overall Summary of Council Performance 

 
 

Table 1. identifies a total of 53 KPIs with associated 
targets, broken down by portfolio, these are measured 
quarterly and included within this report. Graph 1. 
shows the percentages based on the figures in the 
table 1. 

43 KPIs (excluding the 10 Corporate Health KPIs) 
which sit within the five portfolios are monitored over 
consecutive periods within the report and are 
highlighted when they are either above or below 
target for two consecutive quarters. 

 

Quarter two reports a total of 30 out of the 43 KPIs 
exceeding target. Of the 43, six are below target for two consecutive quarters, this milestone initiates the development of 
a Performance Improvement Plan.   

Portfolio 
No of 
KPIs 

KPIs 
exceeding 

target 

KPIs 
within 

tolerance 

KPIs 
below 
target 

Corporate Health 10 8 1 1 

Change Management, ICT and Regulatory Services 22 19 0 3 

Finance Business and Property Services 1 1 0 0 

Homes and Communities 4 2 0 2 

Operational and Commercial Services 12 7 1 4 

Planning and Regeneration 4 4 0 0 

Total 53 41 2 10 
Table 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



 
Corporate Health 

 
 
COF03 - Forecast net contribution to reserves of £301k. The primary factor is an increase in interest on investments 
above budget of £234k. Please note - the forecast does not include the impact of the proposed pay award, still to be 
confirmed. 

HUM01 – Quarter two reports an increase in sickness absence figures, with 0.66-day average per full time employee 
(FTE). This is mainly due to long term sickness cases; home visits are conducted for staff off with long term sickness. 
Where necessary occupational health appointments are carried out, along with risk assessments and well-being action 
plans. In addition, from July 2023 staff sickness absence included COVID-19, which was previously recorded 
separately. 

CUS01 – The average customer satisfaction for quarter two reports at 81%, which is an 11% increase on the previous 
year. As referenced in the quarter one 2022/23 P&D report, due to the implementation of the new purple lidded bin 
recycling service last year, the decrease in satisfaction over this period was anticipated as residents adjusted to the 
new service. There has been a slight decrease in satisfaction when compared with quarter one 2022/23 which reported 
83% however, remains in excess of the target. 

A total of 2,381 satisfaction surveys were sent in quarter two, with 453 responses received. Surveys were sent to 
customers from the following departments – Waste Services, Street Cleansing, Licensing, Environmental Protection, 
Planning Enforcement and Planning and Development. with 453 responses received. 

CUS04 – A total of 48 complaints were received during quarter two, of these 29% (14) were upheld, finding the council 
to be at fault.  

GLC03 – Freedom of Information (FOI) requests completed within 20 working days has reduced this quarter, a total of 
201 FOI requests were responded to during the quarter with 175 (88%) dealt with within the timeframe, this was due to 
staff sickness, however early indication of current quarter performance is that it has returned to target level. 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT  

COF02 - % of invoices paid within 30 days of 
receipt of the invoice 

N/A 97% 99%  ↑ 

COF03 - Overall Council budget forecast 
outturn 

-1.42% 0% -1.83%  ↑ 

CUS01 - Overall customer satisfaction 70% 75% 81%  ↑ 

CUS02 – Compliments received 298 N/A 306 - - 

CUS03 – Complaints received 48 N/A 48 - - 

CUS04 - % of complaints where the Council is 
at fault 

25% 40% 29%  ↑ 

CUS05 - Average number of calendar days 
taken to resolve a complaint 

6.8 21 6.3  ↑ 

GLC01 - Number of data breaches resulting in 
action from the Information Commissioners 
Office 

0 0 0  → 

GLC02 – Number of FOI requests received 144 N/A 188 - - 

GLC03 - % of FOIs completed within 20 
working days 

100% 97% 87%  ↓ 

Page 14



KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT  

GLC04 - Number of FOI challenges upheld 0 0 0  → 

HUM01 – Staff absenteeism (average days per 
FTE) 

0.33 days 0.60 days 0.66 days  ↓ 

HUM03 – Health & Safety incidents 12 N/A 17 - ↓ 

ICT05 - Server and system availability 100% 98% 100%  → 

 

  

Page 15



 
Performance Improvement Plan 

 
The Performance Improvement Plan forms part of the Progress and Delivery framework here at West Lindsey and 

supports the on-going maturity of performance management at West Lindsey District Council. The plan includes 

measures where performance has remained below target for two consecutive quarters or more.  

Additional information will be provided as to the reasons relating to the measure reporting below target, the impact this 

has, the actions in place to improve performance and when we expect to see the improvement following the action.  

The Plan adds further context and provides the extra level of assurance Members are seeking and have requested as to 

why P&D measures within services are reporting as underperforming. 

The table overleaf shows a summary of improvement actions identified with associated Team Managers and Assistant 

Director/Directors. A more detailed plan is managed at service level with oversight by the senior management team 

including clear linkages to the objectives of both teams and individuals.   

The plan will be monitored by the Council’s Senior Change and Performance Officer and the relevant Team Manager 

with the quarterly P&D report used to update members on progress.  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 16



 

Performance Improvement Plan 
 

Portfolio / Service Measure  Reason  Impact  
Actions – what can we 
do to improve? 

When will we start to 
see an 
improvement? 

Change 
Management and 
Regulatory 
Services 

LLC02 – Local 
Land Charges 
Market Share 

-A focus has been applied on 
maintaining our improved 
service delivery and turnaround 
time to our customers and 
businesses. 
-It was viewed that this would 
have a positive impact on our 
market share, however this has 
not been realised.  
- The ongoing impact of cost of 
living with the unpredictable 
and declining housing market 
combined with the transfer of 
LLC1 to HMLR in April 2023. 

The long-term 
impact will be on the 
income received by 
the service. 

• A marketing plan has 
been developed and is 
in delivery however 
performance against the 
market share continues 
to be returned below 
approved targets.  
• Work continues to 
monitor performance 
and work is underway to 
review the assigned 
target to ensure it is 
relevant.  

Sep-24 which will 
allow time for the 
marketing plan to be 
delivered and 
embedded. 

Change 
Management and 
Regulatory 
Services 

LOT05 - NNDR 
In-year 
collection rate 

- The Collection rates for 
quarter two 2022/23 were 
inflated by 12.33% due to the 
award of £1.3m of Covid-19 
Additional Relief Fund (CARF). 
- This reduced the liability 
(amount of NNDR required to 
be paid) for the accounts 
eligible for the fund. 
-This meant less NNDR to 
collect over the 2022/23 period, 
which then inflated the 
collection rate percentage. 

Non comparable 
quarters in relation 
to CARF. 
 

• No action: collection 
rates are comparable 
with pre-pandemic 
levels. 

Overall collection rate 
to liability is tracked 
on a monthly basis 
and projected for the 
in-year collection rate. 

Homes Health and 
Wellbeing 

HHW02 - % of 
DFG referrals 
completed 
within 120 
calendar days 

- The DFG service receives an 
annual budget for the delivery 
of works through the scheme 
however this budget is not 
sufficient to deliver all the 
works applied for through the 
scheme.  

Delay in delivery of 
adaptations 

• Officers continue to 
lobby for fair distribution 
of DFG funding based 
on the demands on the 
service. 
• Explore other ways of 
saving money to try and 

Until the budget 
position is rectified, 
the time taken to 
complete adaptations 
will continue to take 
longer than 120 
working days. 
 

P
age 17



Portfolio / Service Measure  Reason  Impact  
Actions – what can we 
do to improve? 

When will we start to 
see an 
improvement? 

- WLDC currently receives the 
second highest number of 
referrals for adaptation across 
Lincolnshire but receives the 
second lowest amount of 
funding to cover this demand.  
- Legislation states that 
councils have six months to 
determine from when an 
application is complete to when 
it receives financial approval. 
To help manage the budget, 
WLDC have reverted service 
delivery to align with this 
legislation.  

relieve the budget where 
possible. 

 
 
 
 

Operational and 
Commercial 
Services / Markets 

MKT01 - 
Average 
number of 
market stalls on 
a Tuesday  

- Reduced number of stalls - 
lack of town centre offering in 
terms of shops and change in 
habits. 
- Potential loss of historic 
market in the town. 

Market function 
review approved at 
both Prosperous 
Communities and 
Corporate Policy & 
Resources which 
includes a three-
year action plan. 
This predicts 
gradual 
improvement, 
unlikely to see a 
difference in the first 
year. 
2023-2025 

• Annual update report 
presented to Prosperous 
Communities Committee 
12th September 2023. 

A member working 
group has been set up 
to provide oversight of 
the ongoing delivery 
of the plan in addition 
to develop new 
opportunities for 
growth.   

Operational and 
Commercial 
Services / Markets 

MKT02 - 
Average 
number of 
market stalls on 
a Saturday  

Operational and 
Commercial 
Services 

LFC01 – 
Services Held 

Change in trends relating to 
direct funerals and cost of 
living. 

Potential 
underachievement 
of business plan 
targets. 

• Ongoing 
understanding of market 
trends. 
• The target needs to be 
profiled to reflect 
seasonal demand.   

The in-year trend will 
be understood by 
March 2023 and 
profiling can begin 
based on previous 
years data. 

P
age 18



 
Change Management, ICT and Regulatory Services 

Performance Summary 
 

 

Services Included: 
 Benefits 
 Council Tax & NNDR 
 Environmental Protection 
 Food Safety 
 Housing and Planning Enforcement 
 ICT 
 Local Land Charges 
 Licensing 
 Systems Development 

 

 
Measures where performance is above target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI Q1 
(2023/24) 

Target 
Q2 

(2023/24) 
Perf 

BEN01 - End to end processing times 5 days 7 days 4 days  
BEN02 - Claims older than 50 calendar days 5 6 2  
ENV02 - % of environmental protection cases closed within 6 
months 

100% 75% 100%  

FDS01 - % of Food Standard Agency inspections completed 

27% 
(target 

22.5% in 
Q1) 

45% 49%  

FDS02 - % of registered food premises rated 3 stars or above 98% 96% 98%  
ENF03 - % of planning enforcement cases closed within 6 
months 

91% 75% 91%  

ENF05 - % of housing enforcement cases closed within 6 
months 

92% 75% 88%  

ENF06 - % of community cases closed following compliance 54% 40% 75%  
ICT02 - % of high priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 24 
working hours 

100% 95% 100%  

ICT03 - % of medium priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 
74 working hours 

100% 90% 100%  

ICT04 - % of low priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 48 
working days 

100% 90% 100%  

LLC03 - Average number of working days taken to process a 
search 

2 days 10 days 2 days  

Page 19



KPI Q1 
(2023/24) 

Target 
Q2 

(2023/24) 
Perf 

LLC04 - % of searches processed within 10 working days 100% 90% 100%  
LIC01 - % of licensing applications processed within target 
time 

100% 96% 100%  

LOT01 - Number of properties on the Council Tax Base per 
FTE 

5,923 5,000 5,508  

SYS01 - Website availability 100% 98% 99.99%  
SYS02 - LLPG Standard Gold National Gold  
SYS03 - % of systems development requests completed within 
10 working days 

99% 85% 99%  

Measures where performance is below target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI 
Q1 

(2023/24) 
Target 

Q2 
(2023/24) 

Perf 

LLC02 – Local Land Charges Market Share  
**Included in PIP** 

25% 40% 19%  

LOT05 - NNDR in-year collection rate  
**Included in PIP** 

32.04% 
(target 

32.26% in 
Q1) 

66.06% 57.76%  

Benefits 
 
BEN01 – End to end processing times remain low during quarter two, with the team taking an average of four days to 
process new claims and changes. 

BEN02 – Two claims exceeded 50 calendar days during quarter two, which is a reduction compared to quarter one 
2023/24 which reported 5 days. 

Quarter two has also seen the team managing the demand for the Household Support Fund, a grant scheme which 
the Council are working in partnership to provide vital funds across the district to individuals and families, in need, who 
have yet to receive any cost-of-living support.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

BEN01 - End to end processing times 7 days 7 days 4 days  ↑ 

BEN02 - Claims older than 50 calendar days N/A 6 2  N/A 

  

Page 20



Environmental Protection 
ENV02 – Demand remains high within Environmental Protection area of work, due to the time of year that quarter two 
falls within and the types of complaints that the Council receive. As we move into the colder and darker months, the 
nature of complaints will change and should reduce. This enables the team to focus on other work areas such as 
permitting and contaminated land. Complaints continue to be dealt with effectively and in good time.  

Environmental Protection has recently completed their Together 24 review, with systems improvements scheduled to 
be completed by early 2024.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

ENV01 – Number of environmental protection 
requests received 

201 N/A 204 - - 

ENV02 - % of environmental protection cases 
closed within 6 months 

100% 75% 100%  → 

 

 

 

  

Page 21



Food Safety 
FDS01 - The Food Standards Agency (FSA) set the Councils annual requirement for food safety inspections, with 228 
inspections set for 2023/24, to date 111 have been completed, which is 49% of that target at the mid-year point. 

The number of inspections completed compared to last year has decreased due to the temporary resource within the 
team ceasing at the end of June. The number of inspections continues to be monitored, and it is still expected that the 
final total will be near to the required annual amount of 228. A paper is due to be presented at Regulatory Committee 
in December to update Councillors on the mid-year position and to advise on the capacity within the service to meet 
the target in this year. However, the following years target is expected to be far in excess of 228.  

FDS02 - Day to day, the service is continuing to provide effective advice and guidance to food businesses across the 
district and over 98% of the premises remain as rated as 3* or above on the food hygiene rating scheme.  

Internally, a Together 24 service review has been undertaken within the work area and the recommendations from 
this will be implemented in due course. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

FDS01 - % of Food Standard Agency 
inspections completed 

56% 45% 49%  ↓ 

FDS02 - % of registered food premises 
rated 3 stars or above 

98% 96% 98%  → 

 

 

  

Page 22



Housing and Planning Enforcement 
ENF01 – The number of planning enforcement requests received remains high with an average of 24 cases per month 
reported to the team, a total of 74 within quarter two. 

ENF02 - The Planning Enforcement service continues to respond to customers within the agreed service timescales. 
September saw the new Local Enforcement Plan and Customer Charter agreed at Prosperous Communities 
Committee, these refresh the Council's approach to planning enforcement and have been amended to include 
suggestions from Councillors taken from the workshops in August.  

ENF04/ENF05 - The Housing Enforcement team has continued its proactive work relating to energy performance 
certificates, focusing on more rural areas in undertaking this work. As expected, quarter two has seen the number of 
reports over the summer months reduce, with 31 compared with 38 in quarter one 2023/24 and 65 in quarter four 
2022/23, which has enabled the proactive work to occur. Again, an increase in reports is expected as we move into the 
colder months as issues arise with heating systems and the cold, which the team will investigate accordingly.  

There remains a consistent stream of properties being improved within the private rented sector through the proactive 
work of the inspecting team, a total of 28 during quarter two. The improvements relate to circumstances where the 
Councils intervention has resulted in a hazard being removed and rectified by the landlord.   

ENF06 – 75% of community safety cases have been closed following compliance within quarter two, this is an increase 
on quarter two 2022/23. Cases are kept open until ideally compliance is achieved, to ensure that we are following up 
where complaints are made and in turn checking that what we have asked to occur has happened. In cases of non-
compliance, these are reviewed, and the appropriate way forward determined. This depends on the specifics of each 
individual case; this could be a longer compliance period or formal action or in some cases a reduction in the risk factors 
means cases can be closed. 

ENF07 - A total of 12 fly tipping FPNs have been issued in the year to date. Proactive work is ongoing, including the 
use of the mobile CCTV cameras. Whilst generally, fly-tipping is reducing in the district, the Council are still keen to 
ensure that the number of persons found committing the offence increases.  

Quarter two saw Government increase the upper limits for various fixed penalty notices (FPNs). Following formal 
approval of the recommendation at Corporate Policy and Resources Committee in September the fixed penalty charge 
for fly tipping was increased from £400 to £1000. The changes came into effect from 1st October 2023. 

 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

ENF01 – Number of planning enforcement 
requests received 

98 N/A 74 - - 

ENF02 - % of planning enforcement cases given 
an initial response within 20 working days 

95% 90% 100%  ↑ 

ENF03 - % of planning enforcement cases 
closed within 6 months 

87% 75% 91%  ↑ 

ENF04 – Number of housing enforcement 
requests received 

37 N/A 31 - - 

ENF05 - % of housing enforcement cases 
closed within 6 months 

63% 75% 88%  ↑ 

ENF06 - % of community safety cases closed 
following compliance 

32% 40% 75%  ↑ 

ENF07 – Number of fly-tipping cases attended 
for investigation 

N/A N/A 52 - - 

 

 

Page 23



ICT  
The ServiceDesk recorded 442 requests during quarter two with a total of 442 closed within their target time. All calls 
received were categorised as low priority with no high or medium requests received during quarter two.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

ICT02 - % of high priority ICT helpdesk calls 
closed within 24 working hours N/A 95% 

No high 
priority calls 

received 
 - 

ICT03 - % of medium priority ICT helpdesk calls 
closed within 74 working hours N/A 90% 

No medium 
priority calls 

received 
 - 

ICT04 - % of low priority ICT helpdesk calls 
closed within 48 working days 

N/A 90% 100%  - 

Local Land Charges 
LLC01/02 - The number of received searches has decreased from 2022/23 levels due to the migration of LLC1 
searches to the HM Land Registry as well as an unpredictable and declining housing market. This is having an impact 
on the market share which will continue to be monitored through the actions detailed within the Performance 
Improvement Plan section of the report.  

LLC04/05 - Turnaround performance remains high and above allocated target with searches received in the period 
taking an average two working days to complete.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LLC01 – Number of Local Land Charge 
searches received 

753 N/A 540 - - 

LLC02 - Market Share **Included in PIP** 29% 40% 19%  ↓ 

LLC03 - Average number of working days taken 
to process a search 

2 days 10 days 2 days  → 

LLC04 - % of searches processed within 10 
working days 

100% 90% 100%  → 

LLC05 – Income Received £29,770 N/A £17,096 - - 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



Licensing 
LIC01 - The licensing service continues to operate effectively, with a 100% of all applications submitted to the Council 
processed within the required time frames.  

The team undertake compliance checks alongside the day-to-day work within the team, an approach which helps to 
ensure that levels of compliance remain high. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LIC01 - % of licensing applications processed 
within target time 

100% 96% 100%  → 

 

 

  

Page 25



Council Tax and NNDR 
Quarter two has seen 2,192 reminder notices issued as the recovery action related to unpaid Council Tax continues to 
progress, this is an increase of 480 on quarter two 2022/23. In addition, 1,141 summonses have also been issued this 
quarter, 380 more than quarter two 2022/23. 

LOT02/03 – Quarter two reports a 0.82% reduction in the council tax collection rate when compared with quarter two 
2022/23, which is not unexpected given the current economic crisis and the increase in reminders and summonses 
issued for non-payment this year. Whilst a reduction in collection rate is reported, the amount collected by the team has 
increased by £1.8 million year to date, this due to a £4.2 million increase in council tax liability for 2023/24. 

The Energy Bill Support Schemes have now closed, two schemes introduced by Government to support eligible 
residents who have not previously benefited from a reduction on their energy bills e.g. care home residents/park homes 
or for those using alternative fuels such as biomass or heating oil. Payments of £308,800 for the Energy Bills Support 
Scheme Alternative Funding and £188,200 for the Alternative Fuel Payment have been made by the Council on behalf 
of central Government over the course of the scheme. 

LOT04/05 – Quarter two reports an 8.3% reduction in the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) collection rate, this is 
the second quarter that the rate has dropped below target and is included within the Performance Improvement Plan. 
The Collection rates for quarter two 2022/23 were inflated by 12.33% when compared with 2021/22 due to the award 
of £1.3m of Covid-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF), this is highlighted in the graph below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LOT01 - Number of properties on the Council 
Tax Base per full time employee (FTE) 

6243 5000 5508  ↓ 

LOT02 – Amount of Council Tax collected £17,867,877 N/A £18,390,915 - ↑ 

LOT03 - Council Tax in-year collection rate 56.16% 56.16% 55.34%  
↓ 

LOT04 – Amount of National Non-Domestic 
Rates collected 

£5,932,787 N/A £4,732,726 - 
↓ 

LOT05 - National Non-Domestic Rates in-year 
collection rate **Included in PIP** 

66.06% 66.06% 57.76%  
↓ 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

% 58.35 60.88 58.57 58.28 58.39 58.8 56.17 53.73 66.06 57.76

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

N
N

D
R 

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
Ra

te
 (%

)

Financial Year

Quarter Two NNDR Collection Rate 

Page 26



Systems Development 
SYS01 - Continued monitoring to ensure availability and no broken links to guarantee the standard is maintained. 

SYS02 - Automated allocation of requests to the correct officer ensures no delays in work being reviewed and work 
completed in a timely manner. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

SYS01 - Website availability 100% 98% 99.99%  ↓ 

SYS02 - % of systems development requests 
completed within 10 working days 

99% 85% 99%  → 

SYS03 - LLPG Standard Gold National Gold  → 

 

 

  

Page 27



 
Finance Business and Property Services 

Performance Summary 
 

 

Services Included: 
 Property Services 

 

 
Measures where performance is above target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI 
Q1 

(2023/24) 
Target 

Q2 
(2023/24) 

Perf 

PRO03 - Rental portfolio voids 6% 12% 3%  
 

Measures where performance is below target for at least two consecutive quarters 

There are no measures within this portfolio that have performed below target for two consecutive quarters. 

Property Services 
PRO03 – Rental portfolio voids report at 3% for quarter one, the end of the quarter reports only one rental void, this 
being a unit with the Plough offices.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

PRO03 - Rental portfolio voids 3% 12% 3%  → 

 

 

  

Page 28



 
Homes and Communities  
Performance Summary 

 
 

Services Included: 
 Home Choices 
 Homes, Health and Wellbeing 
 Communities 

 

 
Measures where performance is above target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI 
Q1 

(2023/24) 
Target 

Q2 
(2023/24) 

Perf 

HME04 – % utilisation of temporary leased accommodation 91% 75% 89%  

 

Measures where performance is below target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI 
Q1 

(2023/24) 
Target 

Q2 
(2023/24) 

Perf 

HHW02 - % of DFG referrals completed within 120 calendar 
days **Included in PIP** 

15% 50% 27%  

 

 

  

Page 29



Home Choices  
Quarter two sees demand on the service remain high although the number of new homeless applications this quarter 
reduced from 201 in quarter one 2023/24 to 166.  

HME01/02 – Positive outcomes (This could be that the homelessness has been prevented, relieved, or accepted) 
report higher this quarter as officers continue to work hard to maintain engagement with customers with complex 
support needs. The new Homelessness Prevention Officer started in the team at the end of September giving the 
team additional capacity and resilience to manage increasing demand.  

HME04 – This measure relates to the Councils temporary leased accommodation in Cross Street, Gainsborough, 
which has five units. The percentage utilisation remains very high, with temporary accommodation project work 
ongoing to increase the capacity. 

HME05 – This quarter also saw three households in Cross Street for longer than 56 days. Two of these households 
had offers in place from the housing register for new build properties and there was a delay in handover, and one has 
now secured an offer through the Viable Housing Solution. 

HME07 – Quarter two reports an increase in households spending more than 42 nights in B&B accommodation, 
reaching a peak of five households in September. Three of these households had fled domestic abuse and the 
remaining two had fled threats of violence in Gainsborough. The team have now secured positive outcomes for three 
of these households. There is a need for temporary accommodation outside of Gainsborough to avoid the long-term 
use of B&B in these cases and this will be addressed by the ongoing temporary accommodation project. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 
HME01 – Number of homelessness 
approaches with positive outcomes 

116 N/A 147 - - 

HME02 – % of homelessness approaches with 
positive outcomes 

73% N/A 87% - - 

HME03 – Total number of households in 
leased/B&B accommodation 

49 N/A 70 - - 

HME04 – % utilisation of temporary leased 
accommodation  

64% 75% 89%  ↑ 

HME05 – % of households spending 56 nights 
or more in leased accommodation 

14% N/A 54% - - 

HME06 – Number of households in B&B 
accommodation 

35 N/A 55 - - 

HME07 – % of households spending more than 
42 nights in B&B accommodation 

6% N/A 20% - - 

 

 

  

Page 30



Homes, Health and Wellbeing 
HHW01- Quarter two has seen an increase on the number of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s) received, with 56 
when compared to 47 during quarter one 2023/24.  

HHW02 – Percentage of DFG referrals completed within 120 calendar days, reports below target for a second quarter 
this year and features within the Performance Improvement Plan for quarter two. 

 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI 
Q2 (2022/23) Target 

Q2 
(2023/24) 

Perf DoT 

HHW01 - The average number of calendar days 
from DFG application to completion of works. 

171 120 157  ↑ 

HHW02 - % of DFG referrals completed within 
120 calendar days **Included in PIP** 

40% 50% 27%  ↓ 

HHW04 - Long term empty properties as a 
percentage of all housing stock in the district 

1.22% 2% 1.39%  ↓ 

Communities  
COM01 – A total of 30 grants have been awarded to date, these include: 

 Community Action Fund – 6 awards  
 Community Development Fund – 1 award  
 Community Facilities Fund – 4 awards  
 Councillor Initiative Fund – 17 awards  
 Large Village Retail Area Fund – 2 awards  

COM02 - Quarter two has seen an increase in the value of grants awarded, with £101,719 awarded to date, 
Promotion of the funds continues to encourage applications from all areas of the district and from a diverse range of 
organisations.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

COM01 – Total number of grants awarded 34 N/A 30 - - 

COM02 – Total value of grants awarded £53,753 N/A £101,719.63 - - 

COM03 – External community funds levered by 
WLDC 

£163,095 N/A £207,724.03 - - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 
Operational and Commercial Services  

Performance Summary 
 

 

Services Included: 
 Building Control 
 Crematorium 
 Leisure 
 Markets 
 Street Cleansing 
 Trinity Arts Centre 
 Contracts Management 
 Waste Management 
 Green Garden Waste 

 

 
Measures where performance is above target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI Q1 
(2023/24) 

Target 
Q2 

(2023/24) 
Perf 

STR01 - % of fly-tipping collected within 10 working days 99% 90% 99%  

TAC01 - Total number of performance and screenings held 45 8 41  

TAC02 - Audience figures as a % of capacity 33% 30% 31%  

TAC03 - Total number of engagement activities held 75 30 48  

WAS02 - Amount of residual waste collected per household 41kg 45 kg 40kg  

LEI03 – % of customer reporting satisfaction with West 
Lindsey leisure events and facilities 

94% 75% 93%  

Measures where performance is below target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI Q1 
(2023/24) 

Target 
Q2 

(2023/24) 
Perf 

MKT01 - Average weekly number of market stalls – Tuesday 
**Included in PIP** 

25 37 22  

MKT02 - Average weekly number of market stalls – Saturday 
**Included in PIP** 

8 14 9  

LFC01 - Services Held  
**Included in PIP** 

151 173 117  

 

 

Page 32



Building Control 
BDG03 – Quarter two reports and increase in the market share with an average of 80%, which reports above the 
2022/23 average of 74%. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

BDG01 – Income Received £58,610 N/A £53,403 - - 

BDG02 – Applications Received 200 N/A 204 - - 

BDG03 - Market Share 78% 78% 80%  ↑ 

 

 

 

  

Page 33



Crematorium 
LFC01 – The Lea Field Crematorium business plan has a target of 692 cremations for 2023/24, this has been split 
over the year which totals a target of 173 for quarter two. Whilst below target, quarter two does see an increase on 
quarter two 2022/23 with a total of 117 services held when compared with 104 respectively. The measure has been 
below target for two consecutive quarters and has been included within the Performance Improvement Plan this 
quarter.  

Based on the seasonal profile quarter one and two are low season and demand increases in quarter three and four, 
over the winter months. The target of 692 is an annual target which we continue to monitor over the course of the 
year. One action included within the Performance Improvement Plan is to profile the target to reflect seasonal 
trends. 

The team have been working on marketing, with July seeing the delivery of promotional brochures, these have been 
distributed to funeral directors and a copy uploaded to the Lea Fields website. 

Lea Fields have commenced a trial with QR codes, directing customers to the ‘Always Loved’ website where they 
can upload images and text to personalise memorials before purchasing with the aim that this will lead to increased 
memorial sales. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LFC01 - Services Held **Included in PIP** 104 173 117  ↑ 

LFC02 – Direct funerals held 15 N/A 24 N/A - 

LFC03 – Income received £89,755 N/A £96,461 N/A - 

LFC04 – Secondary sales £2,791 N/A £2,840 N/A - 

 

 

 

  

Page 34



Markets 
MKT01- A small decrease in Gainsborough market stalls on a Tuesday is reported for quarter two, with an average 
of 22 stalls when compared with 23 in the same period the previous year.   

MKT02 – Saturday markets stalls in Gainsborough report an increase with an average of nine stalls during quarter 
two, compared with 7 in quarter two 2022/23. The nine stalls relate to number of stalls, not the number of traders 
and include the farmers market stalls within the quarter. 

MKT03- Quarter two has seen an increase in the number of traders attending our market on a Tuesday and 
Saturday, with an average take up of 16 traders per week in quarter two against 15 for quarter two 2022/23. 

A progress update report on the market action plan was taken to Prosperous Communities Committee in 
September, with members resolving to establish a West Lindsey Markets Working Group which will provide 
additional oversight on the ongoing delivery and to develop new and further opportunities for growth. 

In line with the approved market action plan the programme of supporting events run by the Council alongside the 
Gainsborough market for quarter two included the following: 

Tuesday 25th July:  Vegan Market and Musician   
Tuesday 1st August:  Musician 
Tuesday 8th August:  Circus Skills Workshop 
Saturday 12th August:  Farmers Market, YMCA Climbing Wall and Musician 
Saturday 9th September:  Literature Village in association with Newark Book Festival and Gainsborough 

Library and Street Theatre 
 
The dates include entertainment which was also planned with a particular emphasis on the markets during the 
school holidays to attract families, this included a musician, street theatre and circus skills workshops. 

The Town Manager and the Councils Communications Team have been working together on the promotion of the 
market including social media posts, digital screen adverts, printed posters and flyers using the refreshed branding. 
A Radio interview with Lincs FM was undertaken in August to promote summer market events. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

MKT01 – Average weekly number of 
market stalls – Tuesday  
**Included in PIP** 

23 37 22  ↓ 

MKT02 - Average weekly number of 
market stalls – Saturday  
**Included in PIP** 

7 14 9  ↑ 

MKT03 – Average number of market 
traders per week 

15 N/A 16 N/A - 

 

 

 

  

Page 35



Street Cleansing 
STR01 – A total of 292 instances of fly tipping were reported during quarter two, this is a slight decrease when 
compared to 298 instances in quarter one 2023/24. Similarly, there is a decrease when comparing to the same 
quarter last year, with 343 instances reported during quarter two 2022/23. 

The table below provides a breakdown of the fly tipping sizes for quarter two using the nationally recognised 
categories:  

Counts of fly-tipping by waste / incident size 

Single item 28 

Car boot load or less 78 

Small van / transit van load 160 

Tipper lorry load / significant or multiple loads 26 

Total 292 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

STR01 - % of fly-tipping collected within 10 
working days 

99% 90% 99%  → 

 

 

 

  

Page 36



Trinity Arts Centre 
The Trinity Arts Centre closed during August whilst planned essential maintenance was undertaken. Works 
included the installation of new fire doors to ensure continued compliance with health and safety regulations and 
the refurbishment of The Vestry, the planned maintenance should prevent future problems in this space and make 
it more desirable to future hirers. Whilst the closure was needed to undertake the work, this has impacted the 
figures for this quarter. 

‘Trinity On Tour’ took place during the August Bank Holiday with the production of Wind in the Willows. This took 
place at the new location of the Leisure Centre in Market Rasen. The event was attended by almost 100 patrons.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

TAC01 - Total number of performance and 
screenings held 

40 8 41  - 

TAC02 - Audience figures as a % of 
capacity 

29% 30% 32%  ↑ 

TAC03 - Total number of engagement 
activities held 

51 30 48  ↓ 

TAC04 – Income Received £34,681 N/A £29,541 N/A - 

TAC05 - Average spend per head on 
secondary sales 

£2.81 £3.00 £2.36  ↓ 

Contracts Management 
GLC06 – There are no Council contracts that have expired without extension or new contract in place during quarter 
two. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

GLC06 - Number of expired contracts 0 N/A 0 - - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 37



Leisure  
LEI01 – Gym memberships combined have increased over quarter two with a total of 2,752 full fee-paying members 
over the two sites. Gainsborough site reporting 2,105 full fee members, an increase when compared to quarter two 
2022/23 and Market Rasen reporting 647 again an increase on the previous year’s figures. 

LEI04 – A total of 1336 users participated in the senior active programme during quarter two, the sessions running at 
the Gainsborough site as per previous quarters continue to operate at over 75% capacity. Activities include Easy Line, 
SIT Fitness and Stretch & Sculpt.  

LEI06/07- In addition to the active senior programme the ongoing outreach work includes: 

Care Homes – There are currently four care homes taking up this weekly provision. There is a charge of £25 for an 
hour session offering a variety of activities from balloon volleyball, chair-based exercise, boccia and new age curling.  

One You Lincolnshire – This is a free 12-week scheme which supports residents of the county to make significant 
long-term changes to their health. Everyone Active currently have 203 clients through the GP referral scheme in the 
first six months, 47 of these have continued activity and purchased an GP referral membership, others are active in 
participating in casual activities. 

Junior Activities – Working in partnership with Trinity Foundation and Positive futures to facilitate a youth club in 
Gainsborough, a mixture of sports, music and interaction, with 20/25 participants weekly. 

Active Antz - Soft play sessions at both sites launched to provide children the chance to play in a safe and fun 
environment. The sessions include bouncy castle, soft play toys, as well as the parachute and small sports 
equipment. 

Wheelchair Basketball - Market Rasen launching Wheelchair Basketball covering basic chair skills and basketball 
drills followed by competitive scrummages. Sessions will be delivered monthly for a period of six months. 

Everyone Active also deliver low intensity sports sessions at both sites including walking netball, football, and cricket. 

Quarter two saw the Gainsborough site celebrate the 50th Anniversary of the swimming pool, with a family open 
weekend held in September where activities cost 50p, with proceeds going to the company’s charity partner, 
Dementia UK. Activities included swimming, racquet sports, virtual group exercise and bouncy castle. While the 
swimming pool has been present at the site since 1973, the rest of the leisure centre was added at later dates. 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LEI01a – Number of individual full fee-paying 
Gainsborough leisure centre members 

1817 N/A 2105 - - 

LEI01b – Number of individual full fee-paying 
Market Rasen leisure centre members 

642 N/A 647 - - 

LEI02a – % of members visiting the 
Gainsborough leisure centre at least once a 
week 

78% N/A 63% - - 

LEI02b – % of members visiting the Market 
Rasen leisure centre at least once a week 

86% N/A 48% - - 

LEI03 – % of customer reporting satisfaction 
with West Lindsey leisure events and facilities 

93% 75% 93%   

LEI04 – Number of users of the Seniors Active 
Programme 

1175 N/A 1336 - - 

LEI05 – Number of non-members using the 
leisure centres  

7,881 N/A 8,606 - - 

Page 38



KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

LEI06 – Number of outreach sessions held 23 N/A 20 - - 

LEI07 – Number of outreach users 318 N/A 384 - - 

LEI08 – Number of leisure centre users referred 
through the Healthy Lifestyle scheme 

172 N/A 131 - - 

  

Page 39



Waste Management 
WAS02 – Residual waste weights remain largely the same and continue to remain stable. 

WAS04 – Quarter two sees the percentage of missed bins collected within the service level agreement of 5 days 
report at 99%, the same as quarter one 2023/24 and an increase on quarter two 2022/23. The roll out of mobile 
devices for logging bins not presented for collection has helped keep within the agreed timeframes for collecting 
missed bins. 
 

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

WAS02 - Amount of residual waste collected per 
household 

41kg 45kg 40kg  - 

WAS04 – % of missed black, blue and purple 
lidded bins collected within 5 working days 

96% N/A 99% - - 

WAS06 – Green Garden Subscription take-up 58.9% N/A 59.15% - - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 
Planning and Regeneration  

Performance Summary 
 

 

Services Included: 
 Development Management 

 

 
Measures where performance is above target for at least two consecutive quarters 

KPI Q1 
(2023/24) 

Target 
Q2 

(2023/24) 
Perf 

DEV03 - % of major planning applications determined within 
13 weeks or within agreed timescales 

96% 90% 100%  

DEV04 - % of non-major planning applications determined 
within 8 weeks or within agreed timescales 

99% 94% 97%  

DEV05 - % of major development applications, allowed on 
appeal 

0% 8% 0%  

DEV06 - % of non-major development applications, allowed 
on appeal 

3% 8% 0%  

 

Measures where performance is below target for at least two consecutive quarters 
There are no measures within this portfolio that have performed below target for two consecutive quarters. 

 

  

Page 41



Development Management 
DEV01 – Quarter two reports an income of £268,288 broken down into £258,849 for planning application fees and 
£9,439 in pre application fees. Whilst this is a decrease in the previous year’s quarter two 2022/23, the same time 
last year the department received a planning application for the Gainsborough Southern Urban Extension which 
brought in £150,000 application fee. 

Quarter two saw the Government introduce legislation to Parliament to increase planning fees by 35% (major 
applications) and 25% (non-major applications), which is anticipated to be implemented for the next financial year. 

DEV02 – A total of 405 planning applications were received in quarter two, a decrease of 40 when compared to 
quarter two 2022/23. 21 of the 405 applications received 21 were major planning applications, which is an increase 
on quarter two 202/23 which reported 18 major planning applications. 

DEV03/04 - 100% of major development applications (9 out of 9) were determined in time and 98% of non-major 
applications (156 out of 160) were determined in time.  

DEV06 - Two planning appeal decisions for non-major development was received during quarter two – both appeals 
dismissed. To date this year, 11 appeal decisions have been made, of which 6 have been dismissed and 5 allowed.  

Performance Exceptions 

KPI Q2 (2022/23) Target Q2 (2023/24) Perf DoT 

DEV01 – Planning and pre-application income £444,108 N/A £268,288 - - 

DEV02 – Received planning applications 445 N/A 405 - - 

DEV03 - % of major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks or within agreed 
timescales 

100% 90% 100%   

DEV04 - % of non-major planning applications 
determined within 8 weeks or within agreed 
timescales 

97% 94% 97%   

DEV05 - % of major development applications, 
allowed on appeal 

0% 8% 0%   

DEV06 - % of non-major development 
applications, allowed on appeal 

0.3% 8% 0%   

 

 

Page 42



 
Appendix A: Progress and Delivery Measures 

 
 
Corporate Health 

 

KPI Measure Definition 
Reporting 
Frequency 

Composition Target 

COF01 Budget variance (£) Annual Less is better 0 

COF02 % of invoices paid within 30 days from date invoice received  Quarterly More is better 97% 

COF03 Overall Council budget forecast outturn (%) Quarterly Less is better 0 

COF04 Annual Statement of Account Annual - Unqualified 

GLC01 
Number of data breaches resulting in action from the Information 
Commissioners Office  

Quarterly Less is better 0 

GLC02 Number of FOI requests received  Quarterly More is better No target set 

GLC03 % of FOIs completed within 20 working days  Quarterly More is better 97% 

GLC04 Number of FOI challenges upheld  Quarterly Less is better 0 

CUS01 Overall Customer Satisfaction  Quarterly More is better 75% 

CUS02 Compliments received Quarterly More is better No target set 

CUS03 Complaints received Quarterly Less is better No target set 

CUS04 % of complaints where the Council is at fault  Quarterly Less is better 40% 

CUS05 Average number of calendar days taken to resolve a complaint Quarterly Less is better 21 days 

HUM01 Staff absenteeism  Quarterly Less is better 0.6 days 

HUM02 Employee satisfaction  Annual More is better 90% 

HUM03 Health & Safety incidents  Quarterly Less is better No target set 

ICT05 
% of time that the Council's server and systems are operating as 
planned  

Quarterly More is better 98% 

LOT06 % increase in NNDR received Annual More is better No target set 
 
 

P
age 43



 

Portfolio:  Change Management, ICT and Regulatory Services 
    

KPI Measure Definition 
Reporting 
Frequency 

Composition Target 

Benefits  

BEN01  End to end processing times Quarterly  Less is better 7 days 

BEN02 Claims older than 50 calendar days Quarterly Less is better  6 

Environmental Protection 

ENV01  The number of environmental protection requests received. Quarterly Less is better  No target set 

EVN02  % of environmental protection cases closed within 6 months Quarterly More is better 75%  

Food Safety 

FDS01  % of Food Standards Agency inspections completed Quarterly More is better 

Q1 22.5% 
Q2 45% 
Q3 67.5% 
Q4 90% 

FDS02  % of registered food premises rated at 3 stars or above  Quarterly More is better 96% 

Housing and Planning Enforcement  

ENF01 Number of planning enforcement requests received Quarterly Less is better No target set 

ENF02 % Planning enforcement cases given an initial response within 20 days Quarterly More is better 90% 

ENF03 % of planning enforcement cases closed within 6 months Quarterly More is better 75% 

ENF04 Number of housing enforcement requests received Quarterly Less is better No target set 

ENF05 % of housing enforcement cases closed within 6 months Quarterly More is better 75% 

ENF06 % of community cases closed following compliance Quarterly More is better 40% 

ENF07 Number of fly-tipping cases attended for investigation Quarterly Less is better No target set 

ICT 

ICT01 Customer satisfaction Annually More is better No target set 

ICT02 % of high priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 24 working hours Quarterly More is better 95% 

ICT03 % of medium priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 74 working hours Quarterly More is better 90% 

ICT04 % of low priority ICT helpdesk calls closed within 48 working days Quarterly More is better 90% 

Land Charges 

LLC01 Number of Local Land Charge searches received Quarterly More is better No target set 

P
age 44



KPI Measure Definition 
Reporting 
Frequency 

Composition Target 

LLC02 Local Land Charges Market Share  Quarterly More is better 40% 

LLC03 Average number of working days taken to process a search Quarterly Less is better 10 days 

LLC04 % of searches processed within 10 working days Quarterly More is better 90% 

LLC05 Income Received Quarterly More is better No target set 

Licensing  

LIC01  % of licensing applications processed within target time Quarterly More is better 96% 

Council Tax and NNDR 

LOT01 
Number of properties on the Council Tax Base per full time employee 
(FTE) 

Quarterly More is better 
5000 

LOT02 Amount of Council Tax collected Quarterly More is better No target set 

LOT03 Council Tax in-year collection rate Quarterly More is better 

Q1 28.55% 
Q2 56.16% 
Q3 83.12% 
Q4 98.28% 

LOT04 Amount of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) collected Quarterly More is better No target set 

LOT05 NNDR in-year collection rate Quarterly More is better 

Q1 32.26% 
Q2 66.06% 
Q3 86.31% 
Q4 99.32% 

Systems Development 

SYS01 Website availability Quarterly More is better 98% 

SYS02 % of systems development requests completed within 10 working days Quarterly More is better 85% 

SYS03 LLPG Standard Quarterly - Gold Standard 

 

 
Portfolio:  Finance Business and Property Services 

 

KPI 
Measure Definition Reporting 

Frequency 
Composition Target 

Property Services 

PRO03 Rental portfolio voids Quarterly  Less is better 12% 

P
age 45



 

Portfolio:  Homes and Communities 
 

KPI 
Measure Definition Reporting 

Frequency 
Composition Target 

Home Choices 

HME01 Number of homelessness approaches with positive outcomes Quarterly More is better No target set 

HME02 % of homelessness approaches with positive outcomes Quarterly More is better No target set 

HME03 Total number of households in leased/B&B accommodation Quarterly Less is better No target set 

HME04 % utilisation of temporary leased accommodation  Quarterly More is better 75% 

HME05 % of households spending 56 nights or more in leased accommodation Quarterly Less is better No target set 

HME06 Number of households in B&B accommodation Quarterly Less is better No target set 

HME07 % of households spending more than 42 nights in B&B accommodation Quarterly Less is better No target set 

Homes, Health and Wellbeing 

HHW01 
The average number of calendar days from DFG application to 
completion of works 

Quarterly Less is better 120 days 

HHW02 
% of Disabled Facilities Grant referrals completed within 120 calendar 
days 

Quarterly More is better 50% 

HHW04 
Long term empty properties as a percentage of all housing stock in the 
district 

Quarterly Less is better 2% 

Communities 

COM01 Total number of grants awarded Quarterly More is better No target set 

COM02 Total value of grants awarded Quarterly More is better No target set 

COM03 External community funds levered by WLDC Quarterly More is better No target set 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46



 

 
Portfolio:  Operational and Commercial Services 
 

KPI 
Measure Definition Reporting 

Frequency 
Composition Target 

Building Control 

BDG01 Income Received Quarterly More is better No target set 

BDG02 Applications Received Quarterly More is better No target set 

BDG03 Market Share Quarterly More is better 78% 

Crematorium 

LFC01 Services Held Quarterly More is better 
173 per quarter  
692 annually 

LFC02 Direct funerals held Quarterly More is better No target set 

LFC03 Income received Quarterly More is better No target set 

LFC04 Secondary sales Quarterly More is better No target set 

Leisure 

LEI01 
Number of individual full fee-paying Gainsborough leisure centre 
members 

Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI01a 
Number of individual full fee-paying Market Rasen leisure centre 
members 

Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI02a 
% of members visiting the Gainsborough leisure centre at least once a 
week 

Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI02b 
% of members visiting the Market Rasen leisure centre at least once a 
week 

Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI03 
% of customer reporting satisfaction with West Lindsey leisure events 
and facilities 

Quarterly More is better 75% 

LEI04 Number of users of the Seniors Active Programme Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI05 Number of non-members using the leisure centres Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI06 Number of outreach sessions held Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI07 Number of outreach users Quarterly More is better No target set 

LEI08 
Number of leisure centre users referred through the Healthy Lifestyle 
scheme 

Quarterly More is better No target set 

P
age 47



KPI 
Measure Definition Reporting 

Frequency 
Composition Target 

Markets 

MKT01 Average number of market stalls – Tuesday  Quarterly More is better 37 

MKT02 Average number of market stalls – Saturday  Quarterly More is better 14 

MKT03 Number of market traders Quarterly More is better No target set 

Street Cleansing 

STR01 % of fly-tipping collected within 10 working days  Quarterly More is better 90% 

STR02 Cost of delivering the service per household Annually Less is better No target set 

Trinity Arts Centre 

TAC01 Total number of performance and screenings held  Quarterly More is better 8 

TAC02 Audience figures as a % of capacity Quarterly More is better 30% 

TAC03 Total number of engagement activities held  Quarterly More is better 30 

TAC04 Income Received Quarterly More is better No target set 

TAC05 Average spend per head on secondary sales Quarterly More is better £3.00 

Contract Management 

GLC05 % of contracts awarded to local suppliers Annual More is better 20% 

GLC06 
Number of Council contracts that have expired with no extension or 
new contract in place 

Quarterly Less is better No target set 

Waste Management 

WAS01 Cost of delivering the service per household Annual Less is better No target set 

WAS02 Amount of residual waste collected per household Quarterly Less is better 45kg 

WAS03 Recycling rate Quarterly More is better 50% 

WAS04 % of missed black and blue bins collected within 5 working days Quarterly More is better No target set 

WAS05 Number of green garden bins sold Annual More is better 28,002 

WAS06 Green Garden Subscription take-up Quarterly More is better No target set 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



 

Portfolio:  Planning and Regeneration 
 

KPI 
Measure Definition Reporting 

Frequency 
Composition Target 

Development Management  

DEV01 Planning and pre-application income Quarterly More is better No target set 

DEV02 Received planning applications Quarterly More is better No target set 

DEV03 % of major planning applications determined within 13 weeks or within 
agreed timescales 

Quarterly More is better 
90% 

DEV04 % of non-major planning applications determined within 8 weeks or 
within agreed timescales 

Quarterly More is better 
94% 

DEV05 % of major development applications, allowed on appeal Quarterly Less is better 8% 

DEV06 % of non-major development applications, allowed on appeal Quarterly Less is better 8% 

 

 

P
age 49



1 

Full Forward Plan for All Committees (as at 8 January 2024) 

 
Purpose: 
The table below provides a summary of reports that are due on the Forward Plan for the remainder of the Civic Year.  
 
Recommendation: 

1. That Members note and consider the contents of this document to identify options for pre-decision scrutiny, if appropriate. 
 

Title Lead Officer Purpose of the report 

CORPORATE POLICY & RESOURCES 
 

17 JANUARY 2024 
 

Business Plan following Market Street Renewal Share Purchase Emma Foy, Director of 
Corporate Services and 
Section 151 

As resolved by Committee  
a business plan be brought to the Corporate Policy and 
Resources Committee no later than December 2023 
which sets out financial forecasts and any revised 
operational and governance arrangements required for 
approval where necessary. this is arising from the 
decision to purchase all shares made by the Committee 
in September 2023 

2024/25 Measure and Target Setting for Progress and Delivery Claire Bailey, Change, 
Projects and Performance 
Officer, Darren Mellors, 
Performance & 
Programme Manager 

A report to present the proposed 2024/25 Measure and 
Targets for Progress and Delivery 

Additional Enforcement Resources Andy Gray, Housing & 
Environmental 
Enforcement Manager 

To seek approval from CP & R for additional 
enforcement resources. 

Good Homes Alliance Sarah Elvin, Homes, 
Health & Wellbeing Team 
Manager 

Seek support and allocate funding to the Good Homes 
Lincs pilot Project 

Annual Review of Earmarked Reserves 2023/2024 Peter Davy, Financial To consider the proposals informed through the annual 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7a



2 

Services Manager (Deputy 
Section 151 Officer) 

review of reserves process. 

8 FEBRUARY 2024 
 

Committee Timetable 24/25 for Approval (draft 25/26- 27/28) Katie Storr, Democratic 
Services & Elections 
Team Manager 

To approve the 24/25 Committee Timetable and to note 
the dates at this stage for the following three civic years 

Corporate Policy and Resources Committee Draft Budget 
2024/2025 and estimates to 2028/2029. 

Sue Leversedge, 
Business Support Team 
Leader 

The report sets out the draft Revenue Budget 2024/2025 
including that of this Committee and those recommended 
by the Prosperous Communities Committee for the 
period 2024/2025. It also includes estimates to 
2028/2029 to be included in the Medium Term Financial 
Plan. 

Budget and Treasury Monitoring - Qtr 3 2023/2024 Sue Leversedge, 
Business Support Team 
Leader 

This report sets out the revenue, capital and treasury 
management activity from 1st April 2023 to 31st 
December 2023. 

Temporary Excess Waste Solution for Residents Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

To consider an opportunity to provide large bins for 
residents on a temporary basis to clear short term waste 
disposal demands 

MARCH 2024 TBC 
 

Commercial Waste Annual Business Plan Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

For Members to approve the annual Business Plan for 
Commercial Waste 

Surestaff Annual Business Plan Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

For members to approve the annual Business Plan for 
Surestaff 

Refresh of the current Complex, Difficult and Dangerous 
Customer Procedure 

Lyn Marlow, Customer 
Strategy and Services 
Manager 

To review the Complex, Difficult and Dangerous 
customer procedure and support changes to be adopted. 
 
 

P
age 51



3 

11 APRIL 2024 
 

Launch of Customer Experience Strategy Lyn Marlow, Customer 
Strategy and Services 
Manager 

To engage with members in regard to the Experience 
Strategy, the action plan and timetable for delivery of the 
strategy in years 1 and 2 

Wellbeing Lincs Partnership bid Sarah Elvin, Homes, 
Health & Wellbeing Team 
Manager 

Report to agree submission of a bid for the new LCC 
contract currently held by District Councils as Wellbeing 
Lincs 

Lea Fields Crematorium Business Plan Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

For Members to approve a refreshed Crematorium 
Business Plan 

COUNCIL 
 

22 JANUARY 2024 
 

Council Tax Empty Homes Premiums 2024/25 Alison McCulloch, 
Revenues Manager 

Council Tax Empty Homes Premium Charges for 
2024/25 

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2024/25 Alison McCulloch, 
Revenues Manager 

Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2024/24 

Collection Fund - Council Tax Surplus 2023/24 & Council Tax 
Base 2024/25 

Peter Davy, Financial 
Services Manager (Deputy 
Section 151 Officer) 

The report sets out the declaration of the  
estimated surplus on the Council’s Collection  
Fund relating to Council Tax at the end of March  
2024 and how it is shared amongst the  
constituent precepting bodies. 
It also sets out the Council tax base calculation for  
2024/25. The tax base is a key component in  
calculating both the budget requirement and the  
council tax charge 

4 MARCH 2024 
 

P
age 52



4 

8 APRIL 2024 
 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT 
 

23 JANUARY 2024 
 

Internal Audit Quarter 3 Report 2023/24  To present the Quarter 3 2023/24 Internal Audit Report. 

Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2024/25 Peter Davy, Financial 
Services Manager (Deputy 
Section 151 Officer) 

To seek approval for the Treasury Management  
Strategy, Prudential Indicators, Minimum  
Revenue Provision Policy and Capital Investment  
Strategy to facilitate effective financial  
management and planning 

Quarter 3 Strategic Risk Report Katy Allen, Corporate 
Governance Officer 

End of quarter 3 report on Strategic Risks reported to 
G&A 

Audited Statement of Accounts 2022/23 Peter Davy, Financial 
Services Manager (Deputy 
Section 151 Officer) 

The 2022/23 Statement of Accounts are 
presented for Scrutiny and adoption 

Auditor's Annual Report (Year Ended 31st March 2023) Peter Davy, Financial 
Services Manager (Deputy 
Section 151 Officer) 

To present to those charged with governance, the 
Auditor’s Annual Report on the work undertaken by 
Mazar’s for the year ended 31 March 2023 

12 MARCH 2024 
 

Review of Local Code of Corporate Governance Emma Foy, Director of 
Corporate Services and 
Section 151 

To review and update the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance 

Internal Audit Draft Annual Plan 2024/25  To present the Draft Annual Plan for Internal Audit for the 
2024/25 committee year. 

Combined Assurance Report 2023/24  To present the Report from the Combined Assurance 
aspect for 2023/24. 

P
age 53



5 

Risk Management Strategy Report  To present and review the current Risk Management 
Strategy 

Accounts Closedown 2023/24 Accounting Matters  To review and approve the accounting policies, actuary 
assumptions and materiality levels that will be used for 
the preparation of the 2023/24 accounts 

External Audit Strategy Memorandum (Plan) 2023/24  To present the 2023/24 External Audit Strategy 

16 APRIL 2024 
 

Quarterly Review of Strategic Risks Katy Allen, Corporate 
Governance Officer 

For Management Team and G&A to review the Strategic 
Risks on a quarterly basis 

Internal Audit Quarter 4 Report 2023/24  To present the Quarter 4 2023/24 Internal Audit Report. 

Annual Counter Fraud Report 2023/24  To inform members of counter fraud activity, instances of 
fraud during the year and future 

Contract and Financial Procedure (CPRS and FPRS) Review  To review West Lindsey District Council’s contract and 
financial procedure rules 

Annual Constitution Review & Monitoring Officer Report Lisa Langdon To review the Constitution and provide the Monitoring 
Officer annual report 

PROSPEROUS COMMUNITIES 
 

30 JANUARY 2024 
 

Prosperous Communities Committee Draft Budget 2024/2025 
and estimates to 2028/2029. 

Sue Leversedge, 
Business Support Team 
Leader 

The report sets out details of the Committee’s draft 
revenue budget for the period of 2024/2025 and 
estimates to 2028/2029. 

Review of Further Education Taskforce Grant White, Enterprising 
Communities Manager 

To review the position of the Further Education 
Taskforce 

Annual Community Engagement Report 2022/23 Katy Allen, Corporate 
Governance Officer 

Annual Community Engagement Report 2022/23 

P
age 54



6 

Markets Working Group Quarterly Update Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

To update Prosperous Communities Committee on the 
quarterly progress of the Markets Working Group 

Response to Motion at Council re: Litter and Dog Bins Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

To provide a response to a Motion to full Council 
regarding provision of asset numbers on dog and litter 
bins in order to enable easier reporting of full or 
damaged bins. 

19 MARCH 2024 
 

Review of Side Waste Policy Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

To review the side waste policy following a Motion at Full 
Council in November 2023 

Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy Andy Gray, Housing & 
Environmental 
Enforcement Manager 

To approve the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy 

23 APRIL 2024 
 

Gainsborough Housing and Support Project update Sarah Elvin, Homes, 
Health & Wellbeing Team 
Manager 

This paper updates members on the progress of the 
Gainsborough Viable Housing Solution - The 
Gainsborough Housing and Support project and 
measures successes against agreed outputs. 

Markets Working Group Quarterly Update Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

To update Prosperous Communities Committee on the 
quarterly progress of the Markets Working Group 

Garden Waste Service Community Engagement Exercise Ady Selby, Director - 
Operational & Commercial 
Services 

For Member to approve a Customer Engagement 
Exercise which will help shape the service offering in 
future years 

DATE TO BE CONFIRMED 
 

Refresh of Parish Charter Katie Storr, Democratic 
Services & Elections 
Team Manager 

Report setting out time line and actions to be undertaken 
to review and refresh the Charter 

P
age 55



7 

Community Engagement Report  Katy Allen, Corporate 
Governance Officer 

To be confirmed 

Cultural Strategy 2023 Cara Markham, 
Commercial Development 
Manager 

The Cultural Strategy creates a vision and plan for the 
development of culture across the district from 2023 to 
2026. 

REGULATORY 
 

14 MARCH 2024 
 

Hemswell Cliff Public Space Protection Order Decision Andy Gray, Housing & 
Environmental 
Enforcement Manager 

To determine the proposed extension of the Hemswell 
Cliff PSPO 

 Page 56



1 

Overview and Scrutiny Work Plan 

 
Dates of Meetings: 
 
16 January 2024 
Everyone Active 
Scrutiny of P&D mid-year reporting  
 
20 February 2024 
TBC – invite to Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (follow up on roll out of purple-lidded bins) 
 
26 March 2024 
Draft Annual Report & Initial Review of Operating Methodology 
Managing Flood Risk in West Lindsey – twice yearly report 
Markets Working Group – twice yearly report  
 
30 April 2024 
TBC 
 
 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7b


	Agenda
	6a Scrutiny of Progress and Delivery Reporting Through the Policy Committees
	Appendix 1 PC Minutes
	Appendix 2 CPR Minutes
	Appendix 3 Progress and Delivery Quarter Two 202324

	7a Forward Plan
	7b Committee Workplan

